ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 16, 2015
1:01 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak, Co-Chair
Representative David Tal erico, Co-Chair
Representative M ke Hawker, Vice Chair
Representati ve Bob Herron

Representative Crai g Johnson
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Geran Tarr

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l menbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :

Department O Natural Resources - Comm ssioner

Mark Myers - Fairbanks
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Al aska Departnent OF Fish & Gane - Conmi ssi oner

Sam Cotten - Juneau
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO 139

"An Act allowing the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation, or
a subsidiary of the corporation, to build, operate, and maintain
a gas pipeline within the boundaries of the Susitna Flats State
Ganme Refuge, the Mnto Flats State Gane Refuge, the Captain Cook
State Recreation Area, the Nancy Lake State Recreation Area, the
Wl low Creek State Recreation Area, and the Denali State Park."

- HEARI NG CANCELED

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 16, 2015



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

MARK MYERS, PhD, Comm ssi oner - Desi ghee

Al aska Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as Comm ssi oner - Desi gnee.

SAM COTTEN, Conmi ssi oner - Desi gnee

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as Comm ssi oner - Desi gnee.

ERNI E VEI SS, Director

Nat ural Resources Depart nent

Al euti ans East Borough

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the appointnent of
Comm ssioner Cotten to the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 01: 47 PM

COCHAIR DAVID TALERICO called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:01 p.m Represent ati ves
Josephson, Herron, Seaton, Tarr, Hawker, Nageak, and Talerico
were present at the call to order. Representatives Johnson and
O son arrived as the neeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :
Departnent of Natural Resources, Conm ssioner

1:02: 35 PM

CO CHAIR TALERI CO announced that the first order of business
woul d be confirmation hearings for Mark Myers, the Conmm ssioner-
Desi gnee of the Department of Natural Resources and Sam Cotten,
t he Comm ssi oner-Desi gnee of the Departnent of Fish and Gane.

1: 03: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER expressed his endorsenent for noving al ong
both confirmations to the House fl oor.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 16, 2015



1: 03: 46 PM

MARK MYERS, PhD, Commi ssioner-Designee, Departnment of Natural
Resources (DNR), expressed gratitude for the opportunity to be
conmi Ssi oner. He said that he is from Wsconsin and first cane
to Alaska in 1974 on a geologic field trip with his university.
He has several geology degrees fromthe University of Wsconsin,
and started with working for ARCO in order to be in Al aska. He
spoke of his famly, and he reviewed sone of his experience with
ARCO, including work in the Beaufort Sea and the Kuparuk R ver
Unit developnment. He noted that he then earned a PhD and began
working for the State of Alaska as a petrol eum geol ogi st and
then, again, went to work for the industry. Later, he becane
director of [DNR's Division of] Ol & Gas, and when he quit
after five years, he became the director of the United States
Ceol ogi cal Survey (USGS) in Washington D.C. He said that he then
worked two years as the AQ A [Alaska Gasline |nducenent Act]
coordi nator and was selected to becone the Vice Chancellor of
Research for the University of Alaska. He stated that he has
al so served 26 years in the Air Force Reserve as a pilot and
intelligence officer from which he retired as a |ieutenant
colonel. He said he has had the privilege of |ooking at resource
issues froma variety of perspectives and noted that he has been
everything from a technical geologist, a research scientist, to
a developer of oil and gas fields. He nmanaged the small
division in DNR with about 120 people and the USGS with 9,000
peopl e and a budget of approximately $1.4 billion. He serves on
the National Petroleum Council, the Methane Hydrate Federal
Advisory Conmittee, and the Arctic Council’s Scientific
Cooper ati on Taskforce.

1: 10: 36 PM

COWMM SSI ONER MYERS sai d his philosophy is expressed in the four
standards he set for DNR 1) stewardship, nmanagi ng resources on
the behalf of the people of Alaska and future residents, 2)
transparency, being open as to why and how decisions are mnade,
3) science-based managenent, including the use of traditional
knowl edge and western science, and 4) integrity, which is
necessary in gaining trust. He noted the changes in the world

oil market and in the environnent, including isostatic rebound,
coastal erosion, and thernokarsting, and he said know edge of
these changes will lead to adaptive strategies “otherwi se we are

paral yzed by uncertainty,” he stated.

1: 13: 13 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 16, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he appreciates his past interactions
with Conm ssioner Mers, and asked about DNR s statutory
m ssion, its current mssion statenent.

COW SSI ONER MYERS stated that DNR s current m ssion statenment,

which is being reviewed, is “to responsibly develop Al aska’s
resources and nmaking them available to the mnmaxi mum use and
benefit consistent with the public interest.” Hstorically, the

statenents have included term nology to “conserve and devel op.”
The previous Conm ssioner, Dan Sullivan, had a |ess balanced
| eaning toward naxinmum use, he said, but conservation is
important as well in that there should be a true bal ancing of
Al aska’s resource needs. Alaska is an econony dependent upon
resource devel opment on public |ands. The DNR job is challenging
because resources are the economc engine of the state, he
added. O her than tourism nost economc activities are on
Al aska’s 160 mllion acres and not on federal Al aska |ands. He
noted the need to balance fish versus oil, for exanple, and
expressed the inportance of good reqgulatory structures to
preserve renewable resources while devel oping the nonrenewable
ones.

1: 15: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the legislature established the
departnment with a statutory mssion statenent, and asked how he
can create a different m ssion statenent for DNR

COWM SSI ONER MYERS said he has requested |egal advice on that
issue, and noted that every comm ssioner has slightly nodified

the mssion statenent. H's goal is to honor statutes and
regul ations, and he will not make a change w thout bringing it
before the legislature. In practice, DNR nanagenent has been

consi stent regarding responsibilities, and the primary variation
has been in the public process, he opined. It is inperative that
Alaska has long-term sustainable developnent and provides
resources for communities as well. There are four core services
that reflect what DNR does, perhaps nore than the m ssion
statenent, he said. Those are to: foster responsible comercia
devel opment and wuse of state Iland and natural resources
consistent wth the public interest for long-term wealth and
enpl oyment; mtigate the threat to the public from natura
hazards by providing conprehensive fire protection and
identifying significant geological hazards; provide access to
state lands for public and private use, settlenent, and
recreation; and ensure sufficient data acquisition and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 16, 2015



assessment of land and resources to foster responsible resource
and community devel opnent and public safety, he expl ai ned.

1:18: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is pleased that any changes [to
the m ssion statenent] will be brought before the |egislature.
1:19: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that his nobst inportant factor for
| egi sl ative conferees is professional qualifications. It is not
rel evant that Representative Hawker is in agreement with the
conferees or not, he added, and in his 13 years wth the
| egislature, no one has had such a conplete and appropriate
resunme as Conm ssioner Mers. “M. Mers qualifications just
scream of f the page,” he stated. He said that the nanagenent of
DNR i s broader than just geology, and he asked how Conm ssioner
Myers will approach other issues.

COWM SSI ONER MYERS said he has had a | ot of experience in other
areas, for exanple, as vice chancellor he was involved in
research in every area that DNR is involved wth: agricul ture;

water, including sea ice and glaciers; forest nonitoring and
managenent; parks and preservation; and environnmental change.
He added that the USGS goes beyond geology as well, including

Landsat satellites and climte change research, and he advocated
and got the new clinate science centers. The agency provided
much of the data the world uses. He said he worked with the
Secretary of the Interior to release the Landsat data for free,
and that resulted in 100 percent increase in its use and
generates far nore revenue in the private sector than the agency
spent. He said he understands the issues, noting that DNR is a
mni version of the Departnent of Interior (DA), wthout fish
and gane, but with forestry. He added that he had many val uabl e
experiences and learned from a lot of smart people. Land use
managemnment, econom ¢ devel opnent, and conflict resolution are
critical pieces, and he said that “often the mnimzing effect
on resource developnent is a single other resource.” He gave the
exanple of water being the nobst |limting factor on econonic
devel opment in many places. Conflict between oil and gas
devel opnent and cattle ranchers my be as strong as between
devel opnment and environnentalists, and he learned to bring the
parties together upfront. Oten, the permtting process is the
key to success, he said, and he noted the difficulties are
i ncreasing because of regulatory factors and because of the
di verse nunber of stakeholders. He said it is crucial to gather

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 16, 2015



basic scientific data and to have agency collaboration, and he
has consi derabl e experience in those areas.

1:26: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER surm sed Conm ssioner Mers is commtted
to being a science-based manager. [Comm ssioner Myers agreed. ]

1: 26: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that the Departnent of Interior is
trying to “limt us,” and Conm ssioner Myers will “try to change
that future.” He asked what DO has lost in the neaning of the
Arctic National WIldlife Refuge to the future of the United
States and to Al aska. “What have they ignored?”

COW SSI ONER MYERS said, “Quite a lot.” He noted that he was
asked to explain the resource potential of the Arctic Nationa
Wldlife Refuge to Congress in 1995, He has observed that
Congress never nmade the final decision on the 1002 Area of the
refuge. It is only 8 percent of the refuge, but it is Congress’s
decision to nmake, he explained. The State of Al aska sees the
resource potential, he added, and the USGS did the |ast

prof essi onal resource assessnment. “W don’t know how much of it
is there, but the nunbers suggest a significant amount of
hydr ocar bons..about 10 billion barrels.” It is a huge anmount, and

the question is if it can be devel oped w thout significant harm
to wildlife. He said he personally believes it can be done, and
has argued that many tines in his career. He added that the
value of wilderness is “a very different standard.” It is nuch
nmore subjective than neasuring the effects on caribou, for
exanple. It can be argued that a road through [the |zenbek

National WIldlife Refuge] to King Cove wll destroy the
W | derness status, but one cannot successfully argue that the
road will significantly affect the black brant, he opined. |If
“W | derness” nmeans “don't touch it,” then it <clearly needs

Congr essi onal approval, he stated.
1:30: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON inquired as to his thoughts on the new
term used by the DO, "landscape characteristics,” rather than
"W | derness,” and if the intent is to confuse people.

COM SSI ONER MYERS said it confuses him and as a scientist

prefers specific ternms that everyone understands in order to
reach common resolutions for any issue. New categorizations

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 16, 2015



ought to be clearly defined, he opined. One of the challenges
faced by the state is that each of the federal agencies wthin
DO have specific mssions mandated wth very different
purposes; therefore, land classification natters. The Bureau of
Land WManagenment (BLM) is a nulti-use agency, the Fish and
Wldlife Service protects wldlife, the Park Service protects
the values of parks, and the Bureau of Reclamation provides
wat er, manages dans, and pronotes flood safety. He offered that
BLM being nore nultiple use, would have less restrictive terns

than the Fish and WIldlife Service, but “lI think there’'s a
crossover of agency mssions or a collapsing of those
standards.” He advised he already started a dialogue with the

director of BLM and the chief of staff for the secretary [of
DA ], and he chall enged them on sone issues. He further advised
they were anenable to resolving sone of the issues on a
professional level. Rather than having an external fight, he
said he wants to get “inside” because he knows the agencies and
knows there are many good people in them He noted that he is
apolitical and approaches issues as things to be worked out in
an acceptable way. He said he is optimstic because the first
conversations went well.

1: 33: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON said he rarely coments on nom nees unless
they are wunqualified, but Comm ssioner Mers was one of the
first persons he nmet in Juneau, and he has known him personally
and professionally and finds him to be very responsive and
accessible. He recalled when Conm ssioner Mers worked wth
USGS, and the enthusiasm of his enployees was “m nd-boggling.”
Comm ssioner Mers has a good eye for talent and generates
ent husi asm he added.

1: 34: 54 PM

CO CHAIR NAGEAK thanked Comm ssioner Mers for providing
information, and he agreed wth earlier commttee coments
regarding his breadth of experience. Regarding “the place where
| was born,” he said Congress nakes a decision and not an
agency, but “the agency, in this case, has usurped the power of
Congress by quasi-designating an area as a wlderness.” He said
he was happy to hear the comments nmade by Comm ssioner Mers.

1: 36: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON spoke of two | egal cases in the Suprene
Court involving DNR One was brought by the tribe in Nondalton

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 16, 2015



about land classification and public participation, he
expl ai ned, and the second decision was in superior court, and it
i nvol ved the Chuitna River and watershed. Comments are now being
taken regarding the water rights application, he said. Judge
Ri ndner alnost held the agency in contenpt “for failure to
process the applications and treat them as ... a quasi-property
interest.” He asked whether there is a theme in those cases that
Comm ssioner Myers would |like to correct.

COWM SSI ONER  MYERS answered that he did not know the cases in
detail, but he is receiving a |lot of public comment on the water
reservations. He said DNR recognhizes the need to have a public
process on water reservations, and those rights do exist. “W’re
going to adjudicate those very, very fairly,” but it is an
ongoi ng process. He believes that DNR has done what was asked by
the courts. He noted that he was present for the issues
surroundi ng shall ow gas | easing and recogni zes the need for that
program as a source of rural energy while retaining other
val ues. He said he believes they reached a good resol ution, but
it took a rewite of the legislation because it had taken out
the public process. There were a l|lot of angry people in the

communities, including Honer, and it was “not so nuch the
program but the lack of public input into the program” “Don't
take out public process,” he added, “it’s expensive, it takes
time, but it’s critical .. for people to be heard.” In Bristol

Bay, for exanple, where there were |ease sales, Conm ssioner
M/ers was the Director of QI and Gas, and the state provided
for a ot of public input. He said DNR worked with the tribal
organi zations and the communities and asked them what they
needed to be protected, so there was not much pushback during
those |ease sales. By bringing in the public protection and
mtigation issues upfront and by accepting that not 100 percent
of the | eases would be |leased, a mpjority can be |eased. That is
how to reach the bal ances that are accepted by comunities, he
st at ed. He stressed the need for public process and
transparency, which is challenging when there are limted
resources and tine, but they are critical.

1:41: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said she was pleased wth Conm ssioner
Myer’ s enphasis on science-based policy. The governor said he is
interested in additional <collaboration and work wth the
university, and she said there are many opportunities for
substantive work for policy devel opnent and as part of training
state workers in Al aska.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 16, 2015



COMWM SSIONER MYERS said that Alaska needs to diversify its
econony by bringing in a R& [research and devel opnent] focus.
Al aska has uni que environnents and resources and has an anmazi ng
opportunity with the Arctic to do [indecipherable] devel opnent—
sensors for unmanned vehicles, which is disruptive technol ogy
for nonitoring the environnment and contributing to public
safety, he stated. The university is one of the best in world
for wusing small unmanned vehicles, and there wll soon be
partnerships wth sonme of the mjor conpanies. It 1is an
opportunity to bring in jobs and industry, he expressed. He
spoke of mcro-grids and generating power from conbined
renewabl e and fossil fuel systens and said the university test
lab is conpetent in these areas. He stated that the university
has been visited by the Secretary of the Navy and NATO
parliamentarians for science and technology, and this shows
opportunities. He stressed the university’'s technical capacity
and scientific research equipnment that the state cannot
duplicate. He noted that the university can be funded by sources
the state cannot, like the National Science Foundation. Al aska
has a State Comm ttee on Research, which identifies the state's
research needs and the wuniversity’'s ability to perform that
research. Training undergraduates builds critical t hi nki ng
skills, and they will be that rmuch nore val uable as enpl oyees
he stated. Alaska needs people wth doctorate degrees to
understand arctic issues. The university produces about 50 per
year, and they will be future | eaders.

1:47:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether it is within the power of
t he comm ssioner to make changes to m ssion statenents.

COWM SSI ONER MYERS said he has asked for a legal opinion, but
there is a belief that it would require |egislative approval and
he would get that approval. He noted that Comm ssioner Dan
Sullivan's mssion statenent exists wthout having received
| egi sl ative consent.

1: 48: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR noted that the transition team encouraged
devel oping formal training for conducting public hearings. She
said that woul d be beneficial.

COM SSI ONER  MYERS concurred. It is not just facilitation

skills, it is understanding how adaptive managenent works and
finding a mnmethod that works for the state. The wuniversity

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- March 16, 2015



teaches sonme of the fundamentals of it, and it is inportant that
people are trained to the standards that the state really needs.

1: 50: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said there was a discussion about a
decade ago regarding DNR usurping some of the roles
traditionally played by the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane
( ADF&G) . He asked what happened, and asked about t he
rel ati onship between the two agenci es.

COW SSI ONER MYERS recalled that the Division of Habitat was
nmoved from ADF&G to DNR by then Governor Frank Murkowski. The
relationship works well depending on the personality of the
directors and their willingness to elevate decisions, he added.
It can work fine as long the division maintains core habitat
val ues, but there was never trust in that decision by the
wildlife conmmunity. The best answer is to have a strong
col | aboration between the agencies at the director level and to
i npl enent sci ence-based managenent. He noted that when he was
the director of G| and Gas, he was frustrated at tinmes because
the Habitat Dyvision was not using enough science in its
decisions, “and | challenged themon it.” He said it should not
cone to that; there should be good data to make good habitat
deci si ons.

CO- CHAIR TALERICO noted his previous mlitary experience, and
said it was quite a commtnent. He then opened public testinony.
Upon determning no one wi shed to testify, he closed public
t esti nony.

1: 53: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to forward the name of Mark Mers,
Comm ssi oner-Designee, to the full body for consideration. He
rem nded nenbers that signing the reports regardi ng appoi ntnents
to boards and commissions in no way reflects each nenber's
approval or di sapproval of the appointees and that the
nom nations are nerely forwarded to the full Ilegislature for
confirmation or rejection. [The notion was adopt ed. ]

The commttee took an at-ease from1:54 p.m to 1:56 p. m

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane, Conm ssioner

1:56: 47 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 10- March 16, 2015



CO CHAIR TALERI CO announced that the final order of business
would be a confirmation hearing for Sam Cotten, t he
Comm ssi oner -desi gnee of the Departnent of Fish and Gane. He
not ed that Conm ssioner Cotten has served as a | egislator.

1:57:17 PM

SAM COTTEN, Comm ssioner-Designee, Alaska Departnent of Fish &
Gane (ADF&G), told the conmttee that he was a freshman
| egi sl ator 40 years ago and served 14 years in the House and two
in the Senate. He said he was born in Juneau but grew up nostly
in Palnmer and Eagle River. He did two mlitary tours in Vietnam
after high school. He enjoys sport fishing, and he has been a
purse seiner in Cook Inlet for about 25 years. He said he worked
for several years for the Aleutians East Borough as a resource
anal yst, working on oil and gas |eases and on special area plans
such as critical habitat plans. He noted that the |egislature
creates critical habitat areas and the agency puts together a
managenent plan. There was a |lot of public participation, and it
gave hima feel for how inportant the public process is. He said
the state would fully involve the public with any changes to
such managenent pl ans.

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN said he primarily worked on fisheries issues
when working for the Aleutians East Borough. The area has a
m xed-stock fishery and is strategically |ocated near the end of
the Alaska Peninsula. It is the “Area M fishery and often gets
bl amed when other fisheries were not doing too well, he said.
This allowed himto get famliar with many other fishery areas.
He was appointed to the North Pacific Fishery Managenent
Council, and he wll now serve on the council as the
commi ssioner. There are many opportunities to protect Al askan
fishing comunities, but it is a never-ending battle in sone
cases, he explained. The Seattle fleets are referred to as
distant water fleets, and they have fished in Alaska for a
century or nore. The mgjority of fish caught between three and
200 mles are caught by non-Alaskans, but the fish are often
| anded, processed, or transferred within the state. He said he
believes that the fishing industry is the |argest enployer in
Al aska. He comented on the level of professionalism in ADF&G
and the commtnent to do the work. Many Al askans depend on the
departnment to get access to fish and gane resources. He said
working with the federal governnent presents chall enges as those
agencies have different mssion statenents than ADF&G The
pol ari zation, he said, he would like to inprove with better
comuni cation, working in communities, and outreach.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 16, 2015



2:06: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted that the transition team spoke to
a “fish-first” policy, and he asked what that nmeant and if he
subscribed to it.

COM SSI ONER COTTEN said that refers to the sustained yield

scientific approach. He said harvest wll be allowed on a
continuous basis, recognizing that the fish «cone first.
Sustained yield is a constitutional nandate, he added.

2:06:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that Conm ssioner Cotten chaired
this sane comrttee many years ago, and asked how the
| egi sl ature has changed its approach to fish and gane.

COMM SSI ONER COTTEN said there is always a |lot of passion about
fish and gane issues, but he has seen a large change in Al aska's
denographics. Wien he was on the conmttee there were nore
| egislators representing fishing comunities, so there my be
nore chall enges on understanding the inportance of sustainable
fishing communities. The population in Southcentral Al aska has
i ncreased demands on salnon resources in Cook Inlet, but the
departnent has recogni zed that subsistence use is a priority and
personal use is growing in popularity, he stated.

2: 09: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said the transition report states that there
should be no significant loss of fish habitat know ngly
permtted in the state. She asked how t hat can be acconpli shed.

COW SSI ONER COTTEN said there are a couple of habitat issues
now surfacing, including the Chuitna coal mne. One of his
primary jobs is to protect fish, but there is a need to remain
objective, and when “people cone in and apply for Title 16
permts, we can’t have our mnds nade up in advance.” He noted
that he cones froma mning famly, so he sees a little bit of
romance in mning, but he expressed concern on taking chances on
Al aska’s fishery habitat.

2:10: 46 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK said Conm ssioner Cotten received the

| egislative conservation award in 1988 by the WIldlife
Federation of Al aska, and the Al aska Qutdoor Council gave him a

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 16, 2015



recognition award in the sane year, “and that’'s quite an
acconpl i shnent . ”

2:11: 29 PM
REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked about traditional know edge.

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN answered that science has to be the primary
driver, “but if we ignore traditional know edge, we’'re nmking a
m st ake.”

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON said he has only seen it used successfully
at the Red Dog Mne. The elders were consulted on caribou
passages, he expl ai ned.

2:12: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that the North Pacific Fisheries
Managenment Council manages the federal waters from three to 200
[mles from shore]. There was a problem in the 1990s with a
trawl fishery killing nore value in crab and halibut than was
being harvested in the United States. At that tine, the counci
allowed a fishery if it had any econom c value, and he asked
what Conmi ssioner Cotten thought about net |oss fisheries and
bycat ch i ssues.

COWMM SSI ONER COTTEN said there are 10 national standards used by
the council, and the first is to allow for optinum yield, but
another is to reduce bycatch as nuch as practicable. For
exanple, there is a bycatch [imt in the Bering Sea and a limt
to overall halibut renovals, so when the bycatch equaled the
overall halibut limt, the people of the Pribilof Islands and
anyone else fishing in Alaska could not fish for halibut in the
Bering Sea. “W took action and petitioned the Secretary for
energency response and visited the Halibut Comm ssion and pretty
aggressively chased after that,” and in the June 2015 neeting
there will be final action to significantly reduce bycatch for
those traw fisheries, he stated.

2:15:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is working with the Al aska
del egation to clarify that [the council] is not obligated to
conduct a fishery that is destroying [too many fish], and he is
glad that Comm ssioner Cotten is looking at it. The fishernen
should be told that if they are operating “in those conditions”
they risk losing access to the fisheries. He noted that the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 13- March 16, 2015



state has reviewed the king salnmon problem and the sustainable
salnon initiative, and Representative Seaton has attended many
nmeetings regarding the Yukon-Kuskokwim [fisheries]. There were
seven different theories on what m ght be happening, and those
theories were to be tested, he said. He expressed concern that
ADF&G has | ooked at Cook Inlet and is doing a gap analysis, “not

testing any theories ...and we never elinmnate anything because
all we’'re doing is gaining information.” He asked if the
departnment wll be testing scientific theories or nerely

col l ecting information.

COM SSI ONER COTTEN said there is funding available from the
| egi sl ature for Chinook salnon research, and it is an extrenely
high priority for the departnment to conduct that research and
“learn what we can.” In the Bering Sea, the Chinook salnon
bycatch are primarily Alaska fish, and in the GQulf of Al aska, 95
percent of the bycatch are from Southeast Al aska, Canada, and
Washi ngton. It appears that, for some reason in Al aska waters,
the marine survival of juveniles are suffering. He supports
directing attention to that, but the best scientists point at
ocean conditions, “and that means a whole lot of different
possibilities.”

2:19: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that research by the Bering Sea
sustai nable salnon initiative tested seven theories that nay be
inpacting king salnon by going out wth RFPs [request for
proposal s] to collect data to prove or disprove those theories,
yet ADF&G s gap analysis for Cook Inlet nmerely sought to coll ect
information without proving or disproving a theory, so there is
no way to nove on. “So, | hope, as conm ssioner, you'll nake
sure that the people when they re doing and spending the dollars
that we allocate are actually doing science and either | ooking
at proving or disproving a theory instead of just saying ‘we’'re
going to collect some information.”” He added that it 1is
difficult to support research when it generates information but
does not come out with any answers.

2:21:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked about the reauthorization of the
Magnuson- Stevens Act in ternms of nanagenent of personal-use
[fisheries] now that Senator Begich is not in Congress and
Representative Young mght take the lead. She asked what
Conmi ssioner Cotten’s role will be.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 16, 2015



COWM SSI ONER COTTEN said he is watching it closely, and he has
seen the nobst recent proposal that Representative Young has
advanced. It is not nuch different from what has been on the
table before, but it speaks to recreational and subsistence
representation [on the North Pacific Fisheries Mnagenent
Council]. There are no designated seats, he said, but the
wor di ng encourages participation by a variety of user groups.

2:22: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON requested an explanation of the give
and take and mutual respect expected between federal wldlife
policy prohibiting intensive game rmanagenent and Al aska's

policy.

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN noted the difference between national park
policy on intensive managenent and Alaska statutes, which
require it. Alaska's goal is to reduce predators to the benefit
of consunptive wusers. He said his concern is the lack of
understanding of that goal by those at the park service who
called it “ganme farmng.” He reiterated that the Board of Gane
is statutorily required to do intensive managenent, which may
i ncl ude habitat mani pul ati on such as controlled burns.

2:25: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said there are “a |lot of practices that
are permtted, primarily over the past 20 years, that were
unknown to Alaska in the 70s and 80s,” and he asked whet her that
shows a shift in Alaska culture or just that Al aska popul ations
have grown and require nore prey. There is a divide caused by
t he intensive managenent | aw, he noted.

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN suggested he was referring to baiting and
snaring brown bears, which the UFWS and the National Park
Service do not allow He noted that brown bear baiting has not
been effective for predator control. There are nore efficient
techni ques, he added. The practice of crawling into dens to Kil
bears is probably not occurring very often, he added.

2:27:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if Alaska’s recent warm winter wll
require different nanagenent deci sions or responses.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 15- March 16, 2015



COWMM SSI ONER COTTEN said there may be |lower water |evels, but he
is not sure what he would do about that. He said the fire
potential will need state invol venent.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR sai d peopl e have suggested that hibernating
animals may energe early and find a lack of plant availability.

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN said he could not answer that, but there
have been other weather factors affecting nultiple species, like
i ce covering sheep feeding areas.

2:29: 22 PM
CO- CHAI R TALERI CO opened public testinony.

ERNIE WEISS, Director, Natural Resources Departnent, Al eutians
East Borough, urged the confirmation of Comm ssioner Cotten.
Comm ssioner Cotten has a long history of public service and
| eadership in Alaska, and he has the breadth of experience and
the know edge to lead the ADF&G He said he has worked closely
with him and he has been a nentor and a good friend.

CO- CHAI R TALERI CO cl osed public testinony.

2:31:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nmoved to forward the name of Sam Cotten,
Comm ssi oner - Desi gnee, Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane, to the
joint session for consideration, wthout reflecting the intent
by any nmenber to vote either for or against his confirmtion.
[ There being no objection, the notion was adopted. ]

The conmttee took an at-ease from2:32 p.m to 2:34 p.m

2:34: 01 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:34 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 16- March 16, 2015



